

**DRAFT MINUTES
AIR QUALITY ADVISORY COUNCIL
June 20, 2018
TulsaTech – Owasso Campus
Owasso, Oklahoma**

Official AQAC Approved
at October 10, 2018 meeting

Notice of Public Meeting – The Air Quality Advisory Council (AQAC) convened for its Regular Meeting at 9:00 a.m. on June 20, 2018, at the TulsaTech, 10800 North 140th East Avenue, Owasso, Oklahoma. Notice of the meeting was forwarded to the Office of Secretary of State on October 18, 2017. The agenda was posted at the facility and at the DEQ twenty-four hours prior to the meeting. Also, Ms. Beverly Botchlet-Smith acted as Protocol Officer and convened the hearings by the AQAC in compliance with the Oklahoma Administrative Procedures Act and Title 40 CFR Part 51 and Title 27A, Oklahoma Statutes, Sections 2-2-201 and 2-5-101 through 2-5-117. She entered the agenda and the Oklahoma Register Notice into the record and announced that forms were available at the registration table for anyone wishing to comment on any of the rules. Ms. Laura Lodes, Chair, called the meeting to order. Ms. Quiana Fields called roll and confirmed that a quorum was present.

MEMBERS PRESENT

Gerald Butcher
Montelle Clark
Gary Collins
Robert Delano
Gregory Elliott
Jim Haught
Steve Landers
Jeffrey Taylor
Laura Lodes

MEMBERS ABSENT

None

DEQ STAFF PRESENT

Eddie Terrill
Beverly Botchlet-Smith
Cheryl Bradley
Laura Finley
Madison Miller
Tad Alford
Jonathan Truong
Nancy O'Brien
Quiana Fields
Dawson Lasseter
Diana Scholtz

Cooper Garbe
Melanie Foster
Rick Groshong
Phillip Fielder
Morgan McGrath

OTHERS PRESENT

Angelica Reynolds, Court Reporter

Approval of Minutes – Ms. Lodes called for a motion to approve the Minutes of the October 18, 2018 Regular Meeting. Mr. Butcher moved to approve and Mr. Taylor made the second.

See transcript pages 4 - 5

Gerald Butcher	Yes	Jim Haught	Yes
Montelle Clark	Abstain	Steve Landers	Yes
Gary Collins	Abstain	Jeffrey Taylor	Yes
Robert Delano	Yes	Laura Lodes	Yes
Gregory Elliott	Yes		

Election of Officers – Mr. Butcher made a motion to re-elect Ms. Lodes as Chair and Mr. Collins as Vice-Chair. Mr. Taylor made the second.

See transcript pages 5 - 6

Gerald Butcher	Yes	Jim Haught	Yes
Montelle Clark	Yes	Steve Landers	Yes
Gary Collins	Yes	Jeffrey Taylor	Yes
Robert Delano	Yes	Laura Lodes	Yes
Gregory Elliott	Yes		

Before the rulemaking hearing, Mr. Eddie Terrill, Division Director of the Air Quality Division (AQD), introduced new councilmember, Gregory Elliott to the Council.
See transcript pages 6 - 7

Chapter 100. Air Pollution Control

OAC 252:100-37. Control of Emission of Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs)

OAC 252:100-39. Emission of Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) in Nonattainment Areas and Former Nonattainment Areas

Appendix N. Specialty Coatings VOC Content Limits [REVOKED]

Appendix N. Specialty Coatings VOC Content Limits [NEW]

Mr. Cooper Garbe, Environmental Programs Specialist of the AQD, stated the Department is proposing to add a new section 252:100-37-27, Control of emission of VOCs from aerospace industries coatings operations, for existing or new aerospace vehicle and component coating operations at aerospace manufacturing, rework, or repair facilities. Additionally, the Department is proposing to amend 252:100-39-47 to correct minor typographical errors, incorporate the latest changes to the aerospace NESHAP, and ensure regulatory consistency with proposed section 252:100-37-27. Lastly, the Department is proposing to revoke Appendix N and replace it with a new Appendix N. Following discussion by the Council and a comment by the public, Ms. Lodes stated that the staff has recommended continuing this rule to the next meeting in Oklahoma City. Mr. Haught moved to approve and Mr. Collins made the second.

See transcript pages 8 - 24

Gerald Butcher	Yes	Jim Haught	Yes
Montelle Clark	Yes	Steve Landers	Yes
Gary Collins	Yes	Jeffrey Taylor	Yes
Robert Delano	Yes	Laura Lodes	Yes
Gregory Elliott	Yes		

Ms. Botchlet-Smith announced the conclusion of the hearing portion of the meeting.

See transcript pages 24

Division Director's Report – Mr. Terrill provided an update on other Division activities.

New Business – None

Adjournment – The next scheduled regular meeting is on Wednesday, October 10, 2018 in Oklahoma City. Meeting adjourned at 10:35 a.m.

Transcript and attendance sheet are attached as an official part of these Minutes.

REGULAR MEETING/HEARING AGENDA
AIR QUALITY ADVISORY COUNCIL

JUNE 20, 2018, 9:00 A.M.

TULSA TECH-OWASSO CAMPUS
10800 NORTH 140TH EAST AVENUE
OWASSO, OK 74055

Reported by: ANGELICA REYNOLDS, CSR

WORD FOR WORD REPORTING, L.L.C.
111 HARRISON AVENUE
SUITE 101
OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73104
(405) 232-9673

<p style="text-align: right;">Page 2</p> <p>1 BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: 2 Chairman Laura Lodes 3 4 Mr. Gerald Butcher 5 Mr. Montelle Clark 6 Mr. Gary Collins 7 Dr. Robert Delano 8 Mr. Gregory Elliott 9 Mr. Jim Haught 10 Mr. Steve Landers 11 Mr. Jeffrey Taylor 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25</p>	<p style="text-align: right;">Page 4</p> <p>1 MS. LODES: Thank you. The next item on 2 today's agenda is the approval of the minutes from 3 the October 18th, 2017 regular meeting. Are there 4 any questions or comments on the minutes? 5 MR. BUTCHER: With no comments, I'd make a 6 recommendation that we accept -- (inaudible) -- 7 MS. LODES: I have a motion. Do I have a 8 second? 9 MR. TAYLOR: I'll second that. 10 MS. LODES: I have a motion and a second. 11 Quiana, would you please call roll. 12 MS. FIELDS: Mr. Butcher? 13 MR. BUTCHER: Yes. 14 MS. FIELDS: Mr. Clark? 15 MR. CLARK: Abstain. 16 MS. FIELDS: Mr. Collins? 17 MR. COLLINS: Abstain. 18 MS. FIELDS: Dr. Delano? 19 DR. DELANO: Yes. 20 MS. FIELDS: Mr. Elliott? 21 MR. ELLIOTT: Yes. 22 MS. FIELDS: Mr. Haught? 23 MR. HAUGHT: Yes. 24 MS. FIELDS: Mr. Landers? 25 MR. LANDERS: Yes.</p>
<p style="text-align: right;">Page 3</p> <p>1 CALL TO ORDER - 9:09 2 3 MS. LODES: Okay. I would like to call 4 today's meeting to order. The Air Quality Council, 5 June 20th in Owasso. Quiana, would you please call 6 roll. 7 MS. FIELDS: Mr. Butcher? 8 MR. BUTCHER: Here. 9 MS. FIELDS: Mr. Clark? 10 MR. CLARK: Present. 11 MS. FIELDS: Mr. Collins? 12 MR. COLLINS: Here. 13 MS. FIELDS: Dr. Delano? 14 DR. DELANO: Present. 15 MS. FIELDS: Mr. Elliott? 16 MR. ELLIOTT: Here. 17 MS. FIELDS: Mr. Haught? 18 MR. HAUGHT: Here. 19 MS. FIELDS: Mr. Landers? 20 MR. LANDERS: Here. 21 MS. FIELDS: Mr. Taylor? 22 MR. TAYLOR: Here. 23 MS. FIELDS: Ms. Lodes? 24 MS. LODES: Here. 25 MS. FIELDS: We have a quorum.</p>	<p style="text-align: right;">Page 5</p> <p>1 MS. LODES: Mr. Taylor? 2 MR. TAYLOR: Yes. 3 MS. FIELDS: Ms. Lodes? 4 MS. LODES: Yes. 5 MS. FIELDS: Motion passed. 6 MS. LODES: Thank you. The next item on 7 today's agenda is the election of officers. So we 8 need to elect a chair and a vice chair. Gentlemen? 9 MR. BUTCHER: I make a motion that we 10 reelect you as the chairman and Gary Collins as the 11 vice chairman. 12 MR. TAYLOR: I'll second that. 13 MS. LODES: I have a motion and a second. 14 Any questions or discussions, Gary? I have a motion 15 and second. Would you please call roll. 16 MS. FIELDS: Mr. Butcher? 17 MR. BUTCHER: Yes. 18 MS. FIELDS: Mr. Clark? 19 MR. CLARK: Yes. 20 MS. FIELDS: Mr. Collins? 21 MR. COLLINS: Yes. 22 MS. FIELDS: Dr. Delano? 23 DR. DELANO: Yes. 24 MS. FIELDS: Mr. Elliott? 25 MR. ELLIOTT: Yes.</p>

Page 6

1 MS. FIELDS: Mr. Haught?
2 MR. HAUGHT: Yes.
3 MS. FIELDS: Mr. Landers?
4 MR. LANDERS: Yes.
5 MS. FIELDS: Mr. Taylor?
6 MR. TAYLOR: Yes.
7 MS. FIELDS: Ms. Lodes?
8 MS. LODES: Yes.
9 MS. FIELDS: Motion passed.
10 MS. LODES: Thank you. And we now enter
11 the public rule making motion of the hearing.
12 MR. TERRILL: Before we start that, Laura.
13 MS. LODES: Yes. We need to introduce
14 Greg.
15 MR. TERRILL: We need to introduce Greg.
16 Since we last met, it seems like it's been a couple
17 of years ago, but I think it's only been five or six
18 months ago, David Gamble decided it was better for
19 him to wake up in Austin every morning and do what
20 he wants to do rather than wake up and go to Conoco
21 Phillips. So he retired and moved to Austin and --
22 so we're very fortunate that Greg Elliott, who is
23 the environmental manager for Valero in Ardmore, has
24 agreed to take his spot. That gives us a full
25 complement of council members.

Page 7

1 Greg's an East Central University of Ada
2 graduate with a Bachelor of Science, and went to
3 University of Oklahoma to get his Master's in
4 environmental science. It looks like from his resumé, he
5 started as a summer intern at the refinery back in 1989,
6 has moved his way all the way up through the ranks to
7 environmental manager. So he knows the refinery inside
8 and out, and I know he'll be a good representative for
9 Valero and for the industry. So, Greg, I'm glad to have
10 you onboard. With that, Greg, do you want to say
11 anything or --
12 MR. ELLIOTT: Me?
13 MR. TERRILL: Yes. We always like to put
14 you on the spot.
15 MR. ELLIOTT: Well, I just appreciate the
16 opportunity to be here and serve. And I look
17 forward to getting my feet wet in this.
18 MR. TERRILL: Thank you.
19 MS. LODES: Thanks for joining us, Greg.
20 MR. ELLIOTT: I will be on time from now
21 on.
22 MS. LODES: Well, we only have it in
23 Owasso, like, once a year to make you drive all the
24 way from Ardmore up to here, so -- the rest should
25 be in the city, so it's not too bad for you.

Page 8

1 MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH: Okay. Good morning.
2 I'm Beverly Botchlet-Smith. I'm the Assistant
3 Division Director of the Air Quality Division. And,
4 as such, I'll serve as a protocol officer for
5 today's hearings.
6 The hearings will be convened by the Air
7 Quality Council in compliance with the Oklahoma
8 Administrative Procedures Act and Title 40 of the Code Of
9 Federal Regulations Part 51, as well as the authority of
10 Title 27A of the Oklahoma Statutes. Section 2-2-201 and
11 Sections 2-5-101 through 2-5-117.
12 Notice of the June 20th, 20 -- 2018 hearings
13 were advertised in the Oklahoma Register for the purpose
14 of receiving comments pertaining to the proposed OAC
15 Title 252 Chapter 100 rules as listed on the agenda and
16 will be entered into each record along with the Oklahoma
17 Register filing.
18 Notice of the meeting was filed with the
19 Secretary of State on October 18th, 2017. The agenda was
20 duly posted 24 hours prior to the meeting here at this
21 facility and, also, at the DEQ. If you wish to make a
22 statement, it's very important for you to complete the
23 form at the registration table, and then you will be
24 called upon at the appropriate time.
25 Audience members, please come to the podium to

Page 9

1 make your comment and please state your name. At this
2 time, we'll proceed with what's marked as agenda item
3 number 5A on the hearing agenda. That's OAC 252:100-37
4 Control of Emissions of Volatile Organic Compounds
5 (VOCs), OAC 252:100-39 Emission of Volatile Organic
6 Compounds (VOCs) in Nonattainment Areas and Former
7 Nonattainment Areas, Appendix N for Specialty Coatings
8 VOC Content Limits and to do -- to make the presentation
9 on this today is Mr. Cooper Garbe of our staff.
10 MR. GARBE: Good morning, Madame Chair,
11 Members of Council, Ladies and Gentlemen. I'm
12 Cooper Garbe with the rules and planning group in
13 the air quality section.
14 The department is proposing changes to our
15 aerospace coatings operations rules. Recently, we were
16 made aware of facilities in Tulsa County that were
17 finding it difficult to show compliance with overlapping
18 rules between Subchapters 37 and 39.
19 Aerospace coating operations in Tulsa County
20 are subject to Section 47 of Subchapter 39, which
21 incorporates aerospace specific standards by referencing
22 NESHAP Subpart GG. At the same time, we have statewide
23 standards for the coating of all parts and products, not
24 just aerospace, in Subchapter 37.
25 Aerospace coating operations in Tulsa County

Page 10

1 are subject to both rules, as depicted by the slide
2 above. And because the more generic standards in
3 Subchapter 37 do not incorporate aerospace specific
4 standards, some aerospace facilities and our permitting
5 section have a hard -- have difficult time matching up
6 the two sets of standards for compliance determinations.
7 While aerospace facilities in Tulsa County need
8 consistency between the rules, aerospace facilities
9 outside of Tulsa County would also benefit from the
10 flexibility that would be provided by incorporating the
11 aerospace specific standards of NESHAP GG into Subpart --
12 Subchapter 37.
13 The specialty coating VOC content limits
14 incorporated in our Appendix N are much more thorough and
15 useful to the aerospace facilities than the small generic
16 list of coatings and limits they are currently subject to
17 in Section 25 of Subchapter 37.
18 To alleviate this, the Department is proposing
19 to add a new section in Subchapter 37 for aerospace
20 coating operations throughout the state, which would
21 incorporate some of the aerospace specific standards in
22 NESHAP Subpart GG, and, therefore, more closely resemble
23 Subchapter 39's rule on aerospace coating operations in
24 Tulsa County.
25 The new proposal is depicted on the next slide

Page 11

1 above. So aerospace facilities in Tulsa County now would
2 be subject to the new rule in 37-27, as well as the old
3 rule in 39-47. The new rule in 37-27 would have a
4 statement that would exempt them from the old rules of
5 37-25, which are the more generic rules for just coating
6 of all parts and products.
7 The new section 37-27 would also refer to
8 Appendix N. For this reason, the Department is also
9 proposing a new Appendix N, Specialty Coatings VOC
10 Content Limits, with a new introductory statement
11 allowing it to be used by both 39-47 and the new section
12 37-27.
13 To sum it all up, our proposal before you today
14 includes adding new Section 27 to Subchapter 37 to be
15 applicable statewide for aerospace coating operations,
16 amending Section 47 of Subchapter 39, which is the
17 current aerospace coating rule applicable only in Tulsa
18 County, to update reference date of NESHAP Subpart GG,
19 remove outdated material, and add language consistent
20 with the most recent version of NESHAP Subpart GG.
21 Finally, to revoke Appendix N, and create new
22 Appendix N to correct typographical errors and allow the
23 new Appendix N to be used in the new section of
24 Subchapter 37.
25 Prior to publication of the proposed rule, the

Page 12

1 Department received input from aerospace industry
2 professionals in a work group conducted through email and
3 conference calls. Since the publication of the proposed
4 rule, the Department received formal comments from
5 American Airlines located in Tulsa. We are currently
6 reviewing these comments.
7 The Department is recommending that Council
8 carry this rule proposal forward to a subsequent meeting
9 to allow for further discussion and consideration among
10 industry, and so that we may present these changes in
11 Oklahoma City, as well. Thank you for your time.
12 MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH: At this time, I'd
13 like to take questions and comments from the council
14 for Mr. Garbe.
15 MR. COLLINS: I have a question. Mr.
16 Garbe, the industries that will be impacted, we've
17 looked at what -- which industries or which
18 companies that will be outside of Tulsa County. So
19 will we be pulling in additional facilities into the
20 new rule that were outside of Tulsa County?
21 MR. GARBE: We did do a review of the
22 facilities that are going to be impacted. That was
23 part of our work group outreach, as well. So
24 anybody that popped up in our database as a
25 potential aerospace coating facility that does

Page 13

1 coating operations for aerospace, we sent them an
2 email and let them know what was going on. We tried
3 to gather as much information, including whether
4 they already follow NESHAP Subpart GG, whether this
5 proposal would impact them in any particular way.
6 So the facilities that are currently regulated
7 by our rules will continue to be regulated by our rules.
8 As far as we know, there are no new facilities that will
9 be brought into regulation that aren't currently
10 regulated by our rules. They will just be moved maybe
11 from one section to another section. Does that make
12 sense, and does that answer your question?
13 MR. COLLINS: I think so. The main
14 message is that there won't be any new reporting or
15 regulatory requirements for facilities that
16 previously weren't covered; is that correct?
17 MR. GARBE: That previously weren't
18 covered by some rule, correct. They -- there are
19 facilities outside of Tulsa County that were subject
20 to the old rule 37-25, and they will now be subject
21 to a new rule 37-27, which will incorporate new
22 standards that are referenced in NESHAP GG.
23 MR. COLLINS: Okay. Thank you.
24 MR. GARBE: You're welcome.
25 MR. HAUGHT: So does that tighten the

Page 14

1 rules for those? Does imposing some new
2 restrictions tighten the rules on those?
3 MR. GARBE: It could in certain instances,
4 because it's an extensive list of coatings and VOC
5 limits for these coatings. So when you look over
6 the list of VOC coatings, and you look at our old
7 generic list of, I believe, six coatings, it kind of
8 varies on how they compare.
9 There are some that are going to be -- some of
10 these coatings have lower limits than what were listed in
11 the old list, and then there are some that are a little
12 bit more higher limits than what were the six generic
13 coating list in the old list.
14 So, while it could tighten up in some
15 instances, it also allows these aerospace facilities a
16 lot of flexibility to better classify these coatings that
17 they are using as opposed to have to fit them into it
18 just a six part list.
19 MR. HAUGHT: Okay. So -- but the list --
20 the expanded list is consistent with the federal?
21 MR. GARBE: Yes.
22 MR. HAUGHT: And -- so this is going to
23 pull in both major sources and area sources?
24 MR. GARBE: The new rule?
25 MR. HAUGHT: Yes.

Page 15

1 MR. GARBE: The new rule will apply to any
2 facility that requires a permit that does coating
3 operations -- aerospace coating operations, both
4 major and minor, synthetic minor.
5 MR. HAUGHT: I guess I'm trying to
6 understand as I was working through this this
7 weekend, I kept thinking this seemed complicated. I
8 mean, if there's NESHAP GG's out there, why is --
9 why are we doing this two-part thing, and is this
10 really -- I mean, I understand the need from the
11 industry standpoint to want to understand which set
12 of rules -- you know, you don't want to be trying to
13 decide which set of rules do I comply with. So I
14 understand that. But is -- it just seems like a
15 little complicated way to do that to me. I don't
16 know. Is there not just some way to reference the
17 GG requirements and not have these two separate
18 sections?
19 MR. GARBE: Well, --
20 MR. HAUGHT: You know, to have to add a
21 new section for this one --
22 MR. GARBE: We didn't feel -- I mean, we
23 have a Section 39-47 that references GG, right?
24 That's applicable only in Tulsa County. And that's
25 because it was a nonattainment, former

Page 16

1 nonattainment area. Subchapter 39 covers
2 nonattainment, former nonattainment areas.
3 We didn't feel it was necessary or necessarily
4 correct to reference Subchapter 39 in Subchapter 37.
5 That would be pulling facilities into a nonattainment,
6 former nonattainment area rule. This somewhat keeps them
7 separated, so that way you kind of know which subchapters
8 you are subject to and which ones you don't have to worry
9 about.
10 MR. HAUGHT: But the provisions in those
11 two are the same?
12 MR. GARBE: Basically.
13 MR. HAUGHT: Someone doesn't want to go
14 under a heading -- nonattainment heading, they're
15 not in a nonattainment area to look up their rule.
16 MR. GARBE: I'm sorry?
17 MR. HAUGHT: So we're just -- we're doing
18 this so that somebody -- we're not sending somebody
19 who's not in the nonattainment area, we're not
20 pointing them to the nonattainment rules?
21 MR. GARBE: That's -- yes.
22 MR. HAUGHT: But it's going to be
23 consistent --
24 MR. GARBE: It will be consistent.
25 MR. HAUGHT: -- with the nonattainment --

Page 17

1 MR. GARBE: There's -- yes. Which will be
2 consistent with NESHAP GG --
3 MR. HAUGHT: So it is a little bit
4 duplicative?
5 MR. GARBE: Yes.
6 MR. HAUGHT: That's just what it seems
7 like to me. But okay.
8 MR. GARBE: Yes.
9 MR. HAUGHT: Okay. Thank you.
10 MR. GARBE: You're welcome.
11 MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH: Any other questions
12 from the council?
13 MR. ELLIOTT: So in any of the comments
14 you received, have you gotten any feedback from the
15 industry about any impact this is going to have on
16 cost? Have you gotten any feedback from them on
17 that?
18 MR. GARBE: We received input from
19 industry. We didn't receive any input on cost. My
20 main question to industry that is regulated was are
21 you following NESHAP GG already. If you are not,
22 have you reviewed NESHAP GG, and do you feel you are
23 able to follow NESHAP GG. Because those are the
24 rules that we will be referencing throughout and so
25 as I went through and tried to find that out from

Page 18

1 facilities, most facilities said they are already
2 following NESHAP GG. Some said they would have no
3 problem being able to meet the limits listed in GG,
4 but nobody mentioned anything about cost.
5 MR. ELLIOTT: Thank you.
6 MR. GARBE: You're welcome.
7 MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH: We've received notice
8 of one commenter from the public. Thelma
9 Latimer-Davis from American Airlines. If you'd like
10 to present your comments, and then, Council, we'll
11 give you another chance after we hear from the
12 public.
13 MS. LATIMER-DAVIS: Good morning. I am
14 Thelma Latimer-Davis with American Airlines. I
15 appreciate the opportunity to give comments. Also,
16 I want to, on behalf of American Airlines and myself
17 as a citizen, thank everyone involved in this rule
18 making and the council for all of your hard work.
19 American performs maintenance and repairs on
20 more than 250,000 different mechanical and avionics parts
21 and components per year. Most of these parts are removed
22 from the aircraft, sent to various shops within the base
23 for maintenance and repair. So tracking individual
24 components, the type of maintenance repair conducted, as
25 well as the amount of coating applied can be somewhat of

Page 19

1 a task.
2 At present, tracking the applicability of
3 various rules to each of these components is also
4 somewhat difficult. Compounding the difficulty is the
5 fact that there are several rules potentially applicable
6 to such coating operations as stated in the presentation
7 before.
8 We have Subchapter 37, 39, and Subpart GG that
9 are currently potentially applicable. Determining the
10 applicability of compliance with the above regulatory
11 req- requirements involve a detailed analysis of several
12 factors including the type of function and the individual
13 coating, emissions associated with individual coating,
14 emissions associated with equipment used to apply the
15 coating, and whether an individual part or component
16 coating and/or cleaning material is specifically exempted
17 from one or more of the above requirements.
18 Further, many times the rule specify different
19 limits. And although an individual coating operation may
20 be applicable to one of the above requirements, it may
21 also be subject to other requirements, and I think that
22 was pointed out earlier. I'll just present one example.
23 Specialty coatings are those which have performance
24 criteria beyond those of standard coatings, additional
25 performance criteria required for flight safety, consider

Page 20

1 the specialty category metalized epoxy coatings. The
2 aerospace MACT standard limits the VOC and HAP content to
3 6.2 pounds per gallon.
4 Subchapter 39-47 limits the VOC only to 6.2
5 pounds per gallon. However, when we transfer over to
6 37-25 epoxy coating limits are 4.8 pounds per gallon.
7 And that limit does not take into account additional
8 performance criteria associated with flight safety.
9 American believes that the addition of
10 Subchapter 37-27 will somewhat clarify the applicability
11 of these subchapters. American is seeking further
12 clarification with respect to certain GG exemptions, as
13 well. As originally promulgated, Subchapter 37 -- 39-47
14 was intended to include EPA's control technology
15 guidelines or control of VOC operations at aerospace
16 manufactory and rework operations.
17 EPA subsequently promulgated Subpart GG, which
18 represents maximum available control technology
19 applicable to aerospace manufactory and rework
20 facilities. Although, Subpart GG contains certain
21 specific exemptions, American believes these exemptions
22 associated the emissions associated with such exemptions
23 do not rise to the level of requiring control regulations
24 in the MACT standard.
25 To alleviate confusion and burden on the

Page 21

1 regulated community as well as American, we request that
2 the proposed revision specify compliance with Subpart GG
3 is deemed to be compliance with all provisions of 37-25,
4 -26, and -27, as well as Subchapter 39-47. This would
5 include both coating operations required to comply with
6 Subpart GG, as well as those which are specifically
7 exempted under Subpart GG.
8 American has submitted written comments
9 generally to seek and confirm the intent of the
10 Department's proposed revisions and to clarify certain
11 language for this purpose. Additionally, American's
12 written comment sought to incorporate specific
13 requirements and/or compliance alternative be provided in
14 Subpart GG. Thank you.
15 MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH: Thank you. Do we
16 have anyone else from the public that has an
17 interest in commenting on the rule at this time?
18 Hearing none, after hearing those comments, are
19 there some additional questions from the council?
20 MR. HAUGHT: We had a recommendation to
21 continue this. And I understand that it doesn't
22 seem like it's very real time sensitive, but is
23 there a particular reason or is there something we
24 think maybe controversial in this or some reason
25 that the staff didn't think this would go through or

Page 22

1 shouldn't go through this first time?
2 MR. GARBE: Do you want me to take that?
3 MR. TERRILL: I'll give a stab at it. We
4 wanted to present it in Tulsa because rules have
5 a -- a specific Tulsa -only provision in it that we
6 were trying to work through. So -- and we also are
7 very sensitive that we make sure we reach out to
8 everybody. So we wanted to hold a meeting here, and
9 then do another one in Oklahoma City to get the
10 folks that might not be able to come over an
11 opportunity to attend that meeting, too. So it
12 wasn't necessarily we didn't think we could get it
13 done in one.
14 But, generally, looking at the past 20 years
15 I've been doing this, we don't. And so we always plan on
16 doing two of them, like because this one did have a Tulsa
17 component, and then Oklahoma City with it, we wanted to
18 do at least two meetings, and we felt like that would be
19 sufficient to get public input from everyone that might
20 be effected.
21 MS. LODES: Cooper, in a review of the
22 American Airlines comments, some of them are -- to
23 clarify, I see some of the substantial ones are to
24 clarify that if you're subject to Subchapter 39,
25 then you're exempt from the requirements of, say, 25

Page 23

1 and 26, and then, you know, make sure you're out of
2 37, as well to clarify that. I think some of those
3 are valid comments to look at so it doesn't look
4 like you're crisscrossing which one are you
5 compliant with. But I know you've got these
6 comments as well to go through.
7 MR. GARBE: Yes. Yes.
8 MS. LODES: Do we have any other questions
9 or comments from the council?
10 MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH: Hearing none, Laura,
11 if you want to call for a vote.
12 MS. LODES: The staff has recommended that
13 we continue this rule to the next meeting in
14 Oklahoma City. Do I have a motion?
15 MR. HAUGHT: Upon, I'll so move.
16 MR. COLLINS: I'll second.
17 MS. LODES: I will have a motion and a
18 second. Quiana, would you please call roll.
19 MS. FIELDS: Mr. Butcher?
20 MR. BUTCHER: Yes.
21 MS. FIELDS: Mr. Clark?
22 MR. CLARK: Yes.
23 MS. LODES: Mr. Collins?
24 MR. COLLINS: Yes.
25 MS. FIELDS: Dr. Delano?

Page 24

1 DR. DELANO: Yes.
2 MS. FIELDS: Mr. Elliott?
3 MR. ELLIOTT: Yes.
4 MS. FIELDS: Mr. Haught?
5 MR. HAUGHT: Yes.
6 MS. FIELDS: Mr. Landers?
7 MR. LANDERS: Yes.
8 MS. FIELDS: Mr. Taylor?
9 MR. TAYLOR: Yes.
10 MS. FIELDS: And Ms. Lodes?
11 MS. LODES: Yes.
12 MS. FIELDS: Motion passed.
13 MS. BOTCHLET-SMITH: That concludes the
14 hearing portion of today's meeting.
15 (Hearing concluded at 9:35 a.m.)
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 25

1
2
3 C E R T I F I C A T E
4 STATE OF OKLAHOMA)
5) SS:
6 COUNTY OF OKLAHOMA)
7 I, ANGELICA REYNOLDS, Certified Shorthand
8 Reporter within and for the State of Oklahoma, do
9 hereby certify that the above and foregoing meeting
10 was taken by me by means of shorthand, and that the
11 same was thereafter transcribed; that the same is
12 true and correct; and that the same was taken on the
13 20th day of June 2018
14 I further certify that I am neither attorney or
15 council for, nor related starting at 9:09 a.m. in
16 the City of Owasso, County of Tulsa and State of
17 Oklahoma. I am not related to nor attorney for any
18 said parties nor otherwise interested in the event
19 of said action.
20 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand
21 and affixed my seal this 26th day of June, 2018.
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404
405
406
407
408
409
410
411
412
413
414
415
416
417
418
419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426
427
428
429
430
431
432
433
434
435
436
437
438
439
440
441
442
443
444
445
446
447
448
449
450
451
452
453
454
455
456
457
458
459
460
461
462
463
464
465
466
467
468
469
470
471
472
473
474
475
476
477
478
479
480
481
482
483
484
485
486
487
488
489
490
491
492
493
494
495
496
497
498
499
500
501
502
503
504
505
506
507
508
509
510
511
512
513
514
515
516
517
518
519
520
521
522
523
524
525
526
527
528
529
530
531
532
533
534
535
536
537
538
539
540
541
542
543
544
545
546
547
548
549
550
551
552
553
554
555
556
557
558
559
560
561
562
563
564
565
566
567
568
569
570
571
572
573
574
575
576
577
578
579
580
581
582
583
584
585
586
587
588
589
590
591
592
593
594
595
596
597
598
599
600
601
602
603
604
605
606
607
608
609
610
611
612
613
614
615
616
617
618
619
620
621
622
623
624
625
626
627
628
629
630
631
632
633
634
635
636
637
638
639
640
641
642
643
644
645
646
647
648
649
650
651
652
653
654
655
656
657
658
659
660
661
662
663
664
665
666
667
668
669
670
671
672
673
674
675
676
677
678
679
680
681
682
683
684
685
686
687
688
689
690
691
692
693
694
695
696
697
698
699
700
701
702
703
704
705
706
707
708
709
710
711
712
713
714
715
716
717
718
719
720
721
722
723
724
725
726
727
728
729
730
731
732
733
734
735
736
737
738
739
740
741
742
743
744
745
746
747
748
749
750
751
752
753
754
755
756
757
758
759
760
761
762
763
764
765
766
767
768
769
770
771
772
773
774
775
776
777
778
779
780
781
782
783
784
785
786
787
788
789
790
791
792
793
794
795
796
797
798
799
800
801
802
803
804
805
806
807
808
809
810
811
812
813
814
815
816
817
818
819
820
821
822
823
824
825
826
827
828
829
830
831
832
833
834
835
836
837
838
839
840
841
842
843
844
845
846
847
848
849
850
851
852
853
854
855
856
857
858
859
860
861
862
863
864
865
866
867
868
869
870
871
872
873
874
875
876
877
878
879
880
881
882
883
884
885
886
887
888
889
890
891
892
893
894
895
896
897
898
899
900
901
902
903
904
905
906
907
908
909
910
911
912
913
914
915
916
917
918
919
920
921
922
923
924
925
926
927
928
929
930
931
932
933
934
935
936
937
938
939
940
941
942
943
944
945
946
947
948
949
950
951
952
953
954
955
956
957
958
959
960
961
962
963
964
965
966
967
968
969
970
971
972
973
974
975
976
977
978
979
980
981
982
983
984
985
986
987
988
989
990
991
992
993
994
995
996
997
998
999
1000
1001
1002
1003
1004
1005
1006
1007
1008
1009
1010
1011
1012
1013
1014
1015
1016
1017
1018
1019
1020
1021
1022
1023
1024
1025
1026
1027
1028
1029
1030
1031
1032
1033
1034
1035
1036
1037
1038
1039
1040
1041
1042
1043
1044
1045
1046
1047
1048
1049
1050
1051
1052
1053
1054
1055
1056
1057
1058
1059
1060
1061
1062
1063
1064
1065
1066
1067
1068
1069
1070
1071
1072
1073
1074
1075
1076
1077
1078
1079
1080
1081
1082
1083
1084
1085
1086
1087
1088
1089
1090
1091
1092
1093
1094
1095
1096
1097
1098
1099
1100
1101
1102
1103
1104
1105
1106
1107
1108
1109
1110
1111
1112
1113
1114
1115
1116
1117
1118
1119
1120
1121
1122
1123
1124
1125
1126
1127
1128
1129
1130
1131
1132
1133
1134
1135
1136
1137
1138
1139
1140
1141
1142
1143
1144
1145
1146
1147
1148
1149
1150
1151
1152
1153
1154
1155
1156
1157
1158
1159
1160
1161
1162
1163
1164
1165
1166
1167
1168
1169
1170
1171
1172
1173
1174
1175
1176
1177
1178
1179
1180
1181
1182
1183
1184
1185
1186
1187
1188
1189
1190
1191
1192
1193
1194
1195
1196
1197
1198
1199
1200
1201
1202
1203
1204
1205
1206
1207
1208
1209
1210
1211
1212
1213
1214
1215
1216
1217
1218
1219
1220
1221
1222
1223
1224
1225
1226
1227
1228
1229
1230
1231
1232
1233
1234
1235
1236
1237
1238
1239
1240
1241
1242
1243
1244
1245
1246
1247
1248
1249
1250
1251
1252
1253
1254
1255
1256
1257
1258
1259
1260
1261
1262
1263
1264
1265
1266
1267
1268
1269
1270
1271
1272
1273
1274
1275
1276
1277
1278
1279
1280
1281
1282
1283
1284
1285
1286
1287
1288
1289
1290
1291
1292
1293
1294
1295
1296
1297
1298
1299
1300
1301
1302
1303
1304
1305
1306
1307
1308
1309
1310
1311
1312
1313
1314
1315
1316
1317
1318
1319
1320
1321
1322
1323
1324
1325
1326
1327
1328
1329
1330
1331
1332
1333
1334
1335
1336
1337
1338
1339
1340
1341
1342
1343
1344
1345
1346
1347
1348
1349
1350
1351
1352
1353
1354
1355
1356
1357
1358
1359
1360
1361
1362
1363
1364
1365
1366
1367
1368
1369
1370
1371
1372
1373
1374
1375
1376
1377
1378
1379
1380
1381
1382
1383
1384
1385
1386
1387
1388
1389
1390
1391
1392
1393
1394
1395
1396
1397
1398
1399
1400
1401
1402
1403
1404
1405
1406
1407
1408
1409
1410
1411
1412
1413
1414
1415
1416
1417
1418
1419
1420
1421
1422
1423
1424
1425
1426
1427
1428
1429
1430
1431
1432
1433
1434
1435
1436
1437
1438
1439
1440
1441
1442
1443
1444
1445
1446
1447
1448
1449
1450
1451
1452
1453
1454
1455
1456
1457
1458
1459
1460
1461
1462
1463
1464
1465
1466
1467
1468
1469
1470
1471
1472
1473
1474
1475
1476
1477
1478
1479
1480
1481
1482
1483
1484
1485
1486
1487
1488
1489
1490
1491
1492
1493
1494
1495
1496
1497
1498
1499
1500
1501
1502
1503
1504
1505
1506
1507
1508
1509
1510
1511
1512
1513
1514
1515
1516
1517
1518
1519
1520
1521
1522
1523
1524
1525
1526
1527
1528
1529
1530
1531
1532
1533
1534
1535
1536
1537
1538
1539
1540
1541
1542
1543
1544
1545
1546
1547
1548
1549
1550
1551
1552
1553
1554
1555
1556
1557
1558
1559
1560
1561
1562
1563
1564
1565
1566
1567
1568
1569
1570
1571
1572
1573
1574
1575
1576
1577
1578
1579
1580
1581
1582
1583
1584
1585
1586
1587
1588
1589
1590
1591
1592
1593
1594
1595
1596
1597
1598
1599
1600
1601
1602
1603
1604
1605
1606
1607
1608
1609
1610
1611
1612
1613
1614
1615
1616
1617
1618
1619
1620
1621
1622
1623
1624
1625
1626
1627
1628
1629
1630
1631
1632
1633
1634
1635
1636
1637
1638
1639
1640
1641
1642
1643
1644
1645
1646
1647
1648
1649
1650
1651
1652
1653
1654
1655
1656
1657
1658
1659
1660
1661
1662
1663
1664
1665
1666
1667
1668
1669
1670
1671
1672
1673
1674
1675
1676
1677
1678
1679
1680
1681
1682
1683
1684
1685
1686
1687
1688
1689
1690
1691
1692
1693
1694
1695
1696
1697
1698
1699
1700
1701
1702
1703
1704
1705
1706
1707
1708
1709
1710
1711
1712
1713
1714
1715
1716
1717
1718
1719
1720
1721
1722
1723
1724
1725
1726
1727
1728
1729
1730
1731
1732
1733
1734
1735
1736
1737
1738
1739
1740
1741
1742
1743
1744
1745
1746
1747
1748
1749
1750
1751
1752
1753
1754
1755
1756
1757
1758
1759
1760
1761
1762
1763
1764
1765
1766
1767
1768
1769
1770
1771
1772
1773
1774
1775
1776
1777
1778
1779
1780
1781
1782
1783
1784
1785
1786
1787
1788
1789
1790
1791
1792
1793
1794
1795
1796
1797
1798
1799
1800
1801
1802
1803
1804
1805
1806
1807
1808
1809
1810
1811
1812
1813
1814
1815
1816
1817
1818
1819
1820
1821
1822
1823
1824
1825
1826
1827
1828
1829
1830
1831
1832
1833
1834
1835
1836
1837
1838
1839
1840
1841
1842
1843
1844
1845
1846
1847
1848
1849
1850
1851
1852
1853
1854
1855
1856
1857
1858
1859
1860
1861
1862
1863
1864
1865
1866
1867
1868
1869
1870
1871
1872
1873
1874
1875
1876
1877
1878
1879
1880
1881
1882
1883
1884
1885
1886
1887
1888
1889
1890
1891
1892
1893
1894
1895
1896
1897
1898
1899
1900
1901
1902
1903
1904
1905
1906
1907
1908
1909
1910
1911
1912
1913
1914
1915
1916
1917
1918
1919
1920
1921
1922
1923
1924
1925
1926
1927
1928
1929
1930
1931
1932
1933
1934
1935
1936
1937
1938
1939
1940
1941
1942
1943
1944
1945
1946
1947
1948
1949
1950
1951
1952
1953
1954
1955
1956
1957
1958
1959
1960
1961
1962
1963
1964
1965
1966
1967
1968
1969
1970
1971
1972
1973
1974
1975
1976
1977
1978
1979
1980
1981
1982
1983
1984
1985
1986
1987
1988
1989
1990
1991
1992
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2



AIR QUALITY COUNCIL

Attendance Record

June 20, 2018

Owasso, Oklahoma

NAME and/or AFFILIATION

Address and/or Phone and/or E-Mail

<u>NAME</u> and/or <u>AFFILIATION</u>	<u>Address</u> and/or <u>Phone</u> and/or <u>E-Mail</u>
ROANEY BLAIR USPS	ROANEY.J.BLAIR@USPS.GOV
Mark LAWSON Spirit AeroSystems	Mark.LAWSON@Spiritaero.com
Melanie Foster DEQ	Melanie.FOSTER@DEQ.OK.GOV
Jonathan TRUONG DEQ	JonathanTruong@DEQ.OK.GOV
Cheryl Bradley DEQ	Cheryl.bradley@DEQ.OK.GOV
Cooper GARBE DEQ	Cooper.GARBE@DEQ.OK.GOV
Eddie TERRILL DEQ	Eddie.TERRILL@DEQ.OK.GOV
Diana Scholtz DEQ	DIANA.SCHOLTZ@DEQ.OK.GOV
Quiana Fields DEQ	
Nancy O'Brien DEQ	
BRYAN CURTIS CHESAPEAKE ENERGY	bryan.curtis@chk.com
Laura Finley DEQ	Laura.Finley@deq.ok.gov
Beverly Batchlet-Smith DEQ	Beverly.Batchlet-Smith@deq.ok.gov
HELEN KING ODEQ	helen.king@deq.ok.gov
Marjorie Boone ONE Gas	marjorie.boone@onegas.com
Kyle Dunn Trinity	kdunn@trinityconsultants.com
Tad Alfaro DEQ	Tad.alfaro@deq.ok.gov
Bob Delano UCO	bobdelano1@yahoo.com
Rick Groszkow DEQ	richard.groszkow@deq.ok.gov
Sam Miller PSD/AEP	SRMiller@aep.com
KEN RUFFIN AEP	Kwruffin@aep.com
Garry Kede McAfee & Taff	garry.kede@mcataff.com
Nancy Gulam INCOG	nangulam@incog.org



AIR QUALITY COUNCIL

Attendance Record

June 20, 2018

Owasso, Oklahoma

NAME and/or AFFILIATION

Address and/or Phone and/or E-Mail

Laura Lodes	AQC	Laura.lbrithen-Lodes@eccgsp.com
Jim Haught	AQC	jim.haught@onegas.com
Robbie Gillem	IP	robbie.gillem@ipaper.com
Bud Ground	EFO	
Steve Landers	AQC	
Gerald Butcher	WFEC	gbutcher@wfec.com
Maryn McGrath	AQD	maryn.mcgrath@deq-ok.gov
Jeff Day	AQC	jdhtaylor@msn.com
Montelle Clark	AQC	montelle@cox.net
Madison Miller	AQD	
Cary Collins	AQC	gcollins@cfindustries.com
Thelma Latimer-Davis	American Airlines	thelma.norman@a.a.com
Phillip Fielder	AQD	
DANSON Lisseten	"	
Greg Elliott	AQC	greg.elliott@valero.com 580-341-8204